
Ds:CPC/2015/2015-04-21 Minutes.doc  15 

CITY OF RICHARDSON 

CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES – MAY 5, 2015 

 

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on May 5, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in the Council 

Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Barry Hand, Chairman 

  Gerald Bright, Vice Chair 

  Janet DePuy, Commissioner 

  Marilyn Frederick, Commissioner 

  Thomas Maxwell, Commissioner 

  Randy Roland, Commissioner 

  Stephen Springs, Alternate 

  Marta Gomez-Frey, Alternate 
 

MEMBER ABSENT: Bill Ferrell, Commissioner 
  

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Assistant Director – Dev. Svcs. - Planning 

  Israel Roberts, Development Manager 

  Chris Shacklett, Senior Planner 

  Mohamed Bireima, Planning Tech.   

  Kathy Welp, Executive Secretary 

 

BRIEFING SESSION 
 

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff regarding 

staff reports and agenda items.  No action was taken. 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 
 

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, Chairman Hand introduced and welcomed the 

newest member of the Commission, Marta Gomez- Frey, who would be acting as an alternate.  He 

added that Mr. Ferrell had moved from an alternate to a permanent position. 

 

MINUTES 
 

1. Approval of the minutes of the regular business meeting of April 21, 2015. 
 

Motion: Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to approve the minutes as presented; second 

by Commissioner Roland.  Motion approved 7-0. 
 

VARIANCE 
 

2. Variances 15-10 – The Episcopal Church of the Epiphany:  Consider and take necessary 

action on a request for approval of a variance to Chapter 21 of the Subdivision and 

Development Code to waive the required screening of a parking lot for a religious facility 

located within a residential district. The property is located at 421 Custer Road, southwest 

corner of Custer Road and Greenleaf Drive. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

May 5, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-05-05 Minutes.doc  2 

Mr. Roberts stated the applicant was requesting a waiver to the requirements of Chapter 21 in 

the City’s Subdivision and Development Code for a screening wall for the parking lot of a 

religious facility located adjacent to residential properties.  He added that under the screening 

requirements, an 8-foot wall or 8-foot wide landscape buffer would be required along the south, 

southwest and northwest property lines.   

 

Mr. Roberts advised that 10 letters in support from the surrounding neighborhood were included 

in the Commission’s packets and no other correspondence had been received. 

 

Chairman Hand asked the applicant if he would like to step forward and make any comments. 

 

The Reverend Bill Cavanaugh, Episcopal Church of the Epiphany, 421 Custer Road, 

Richardson, Texas, explained the church was planning a building expansion on the northeast 

corner of the property away from the adjacent homes and they had met with the majority of the 

neighbors who felt the wall was not necessary.  He added the neighbors objected to a wall based 

on the limited space between the parking lot and alley, the topography of the area, and the fact a 

wall would separate the neighborhood from the community gardens. 

 

Commissioner Roland asked how long the church had been at the location and who was 

responsible for the maintaining the green space along the alley. 

 

Rev. Cavanaugh replied the church had been at its present location since the early 1960’s and 

they maintained the green space and would continue to do so. 

 

Motion: Vice Chair Bright made a motion to recommend approval of Variance 15-10 as 

presented; second by Commissioner Roland.  Motion approved 7-0. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

3. Replat – Townes of Buckingham Addition, Lots 1A-25A, Block A; Lots 1A-24A, Block B; 

Lots 1A-20A, Block C; Lots 1A-12A, Block D; and Lots 1A-6A, Block X:  Consider and take 

necessary action on a request for approval of a replat of the entirety of the Townes of 

Buckingham Addition.  The 7.04-acre site is located on the east side of Whitehall Drive south of 

Centennial Boulevard. 

 

Mr. Roberts stated the applicant was requesting approval of a replat to accommodate a change 

in franchise utilities from gas to electric by widening the alley easements 5 feet on each side.  

He noted there were no other changes requested for the replat and it did comply with the City’s 

subdivision standards. 

 

With no questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 

 

Mr. Bryan Umberger, Texas Development Services, 1800 Valley View Lane, Suite 140, 

Farmers Branch, Texas, said he was available for any questions; none were asked. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

May 5, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-05-05 Minutes.doc  3 

No other comments or questions in favor or opposed were received and Chairman Hand closed 

the public hearing. 

 

Motion: Commissioner DePuy made a motion to approve Item 3 as presented; second by Vice 

Chair Bright.  Motion approved 7-0. 

 

4. Zoning File 15-07 – Drive-thru Restaurant (continued from April 7, 2015):  Consider and 

take necessary action on a request for a Special Permit for a restaurant with drive-thru service at 

1405 E. Renner Road, northeast corner of Renner and Plano Roads. 

 

Chairman Hand announced the Public Hearing from April 7, 2015 was still open and asked staff 

to update the Commission. 

 

Mr. Shacklett stated the applicant was requesting approval of a Special Permit for a drive-thru 

restaurant at the northeast corner of Plano and Renner Roads and reviewed the history of the 

project and some of the objections from the Commission mentioned in the previous meeting. 

 

Regarding concerns expressed about pedestrian and vehicular circulation through the property, 

Mr. Shacklett said the applicant had reviewed the Commission’s concerns and prepared a 

circulation plan to address those concerns: 

 

A. Pedestrian Access and Circulation – sidewalk would move to the Plano Road side of the 

property and then through the parking lot utilizing physical features – colored or 

stamped concrete - to let pedestrians know they were transitioning into a vehicular area. 

Directional signs would be used for vehicles. 

B. Angles Parking Spaces – remove angled spaces next to the bank drive-thru and put in 

one parallel parking space leaving thirty-one parking spaces for the project, which did 

meet the required number of parking spaces. 

C. Increase Parking Space Length – parking spaces on the south side of the building would 

be increased in length to 18 feet; eliminate the curb in front of the handicap spaces; and 

add decorative bollards. 

 

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by noting the elevations had not been discussed at the 

previous meeting, but the building would be 100 percent masonry (brick, stone and stucco), with 

metal panels, canopies and accents, similar to the CityLine Market development.  He added that 

one letter in support had been received from the property owner on the southeast corner of 

Renner Road. 

 

Commissioner Frederick asked if there was a plan to provide protection for the patio area and 

would there be a break out line for the drive-thru restaurant. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied that other than the curb, nothing had been shown on the plans; however, in 

discussions with the applicant they said they were not sure how that area would be treated. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

May 5, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-05-05 Minutes.doc  4 

Regarding the break-out lane for the drive-thru restaurant, Mr. Shacklett stated that had been 

considered, but City codes did not require one and if one was built, it would cause vehicles to 

turn out into the wrong direction of traffic. 

 

Vice Chair Bright asked if Exhibit B3 contained locations for pedestrian crossing signs. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied that Exhibit B3 showed vehicular traffic signs including signs to alert 

drivers of pedestrians.  There were no specific discussions about pedestrian signage, but the 

walkways would be made of stamped or color concrete leading from the parking lot to the 

building. 

 

Vice Chair Bright asked if the item was approved as presented, would some type of pedestrian 

crossing sign be required. 

 

Mr. Shacklett said Exhibit B3 was for illustrative purposes only; however, the Commission 

could, as part of their motion, require a pedestrian crossing sign similar to the one shown on 

Exhibit B3. 

 

Chairman Hand asked to confirm which exhibits would be included if the plan was approved. 

 

Mr. Shacklett stated that only Exhibits B2 and C, as stated in the conditions, would be included 

if approved by the Commission, and Exhibits B3, B4 and D were illustrative in nature. 

 

Commissioner DePuy asked if the restaurant would have inside seating and expressed concern 

about the number of parking spaces for customers and employees of both businesses.   

 

Mr. Shacklett replied the restaurant would have inside seating and the parking for the building 

was based on the same ratios for any restaurant in the City; 1:100 square feet, and a bank parked 

as office use at 1:250 square feet. 

 

Vice Chair Bright asked if the paved pedestrian walkway could be taken all the way through the 

green space to the four parking spaces on the east. 

 

Mr. Shacklett acknowledged that was possible, but the applicant would have to look at how to 

angle the path through the green space. 

 

Chairman Hand suggested a possible solution that would prevent pedestrians from having to 

walk through shrubbery or between parked cars. 

 

With no other questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 

 

Mr. Michael Alost, KDC Real Estate, 20 Ashton Court, Dallas, Texas, stated KDC was 

endorsing the proposed project and explained their development partners, Regency Centers, was 

proposing a project that was part of an innovative trend across the national combining two 

mutually exclusive business based on the fact their hours of operation were complimentary.   



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

May 5, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-05-05 Minutes.doc  5 

 

Mr. Matt Booth, Regency Centers, 8080 Central Expressway, Dallas, Texas, stated the proposed 

project was a tenant driven concept and believed the drive-thru restaurant would be a morning 

oriented enterprise, whereas the bank would not begin their business until 9:00 a.m. or later, 

which in turn would spread the pedestrian and vehicular traffic throughout the day. 

 

Commissioner DePuy asked how much pedestrian traffic the bank would generate. 

 

Mr. Booth replied that feedback received from financial institutions was that their business was 

changing and a majority of banking is done on-line so the staff needed to support the bank 

would be limited.  He added they were not completely clear on where the ATM would be 

located – either accessible from the exterior or via a section of the lobby. 

 

Commissioner Frederick complimented the applicant on the revisions to the project and asked 

about the hours of operations for the two tenants.   

 

Mr. Booth said the financial institution would have typical banking hours, 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 or 

6:00 p.m., with the restaurant leaning more towards early morning hours. 

 

Vice Chair Bright asked if the applicant was willing to extend the walkway to the east to 

connect to the four parking spaces. 

 

Mr. Booth stated that extending the walkway would be something to look at and felt the changes 

made to the parking space along the bank drive-thru would allow extra space for the walkway 

on the southern edge of the green space. 

 

Chairman Hand called for any comments in opposition. 

 

Mr. Kevin Williams, 748 Matthew Place, Richardson, Texas, complimented the applicants on 

their creativity, but had some concerns over the double drive-thru, the use, as well as the impact 

to the property on the southeast corner of the intersection. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied the gas station that had been on the southeast corner of the intersection had 

been demolished and the property was zoned LR-M(2) Local Retail. 

 

Chairman Hand asked if the applicant would like to offer a rebuttal or closing statement. 

 

Mr. Booth agreed the development was unusual, and they did not want to put a square peg in a 

round hole, but were relying heavily on the track record of two very well-known national 

institutions that were in touch with the demands of their customers. 

 

Commissioner Springs acknowledged that the applicant could not divulge who the tenants 

would be, but asked how many similar type developments were in existence.  He also wanted to 

know if the ATM would be inside the bank building. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

May 5, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-05-05 Minutes.doc  6 

Mr. Booth replied there were four separate financial institutions that had been contacted and all 

stated they were bringing similar concepts to market.  In addition, there are currently four 

similar developments from Washington to California.   

 

Regarding the location for the ATM, Mr. Booth said the location was usually driven by the 

preference of the specific financial institution. 

 

No other questions or comments were received and Chairman Hand closed the public hearing. 

 

Commissioner Maxwell said he liked the revisions made by the applicant and suggested an 

alternative to the design for the walkway and parking on the east side of the bank. 

 

Vice Chair Bright stated he would like to see signage for the pedestrian crossings. 

 

Chairman Hand concurred with Mr. Maxwell about the walkway and thanked the applicant for 

listening to the comments and concerns of the Commission. 

 

Commissioner Springs said he appreciated how the applicant had addressed some of the 

concerns, but he was still hesitant about over-loading the site and was concerned about the 

future use should the proposed tenants change. 

 

Commissioner DePuy stated she appreciated the revisions made by the applicant, but still had 

concerns over the long term use, traffic issues and thought the plan might be too much for one 

corner.  

 

Commissioner Gomez-Frey suggested if Exhibit B3 was made part of the motion, additional 

signage would be needed by the bank drive-thru. 

 

Chairman Hand agreed with Ms. Gomez-Frey and noted that most restaurants had “way 

finding” signage, but thought the exhibit would insure the bare minimum. 

 

Vice Chair Bright asked staff how to address the walkway to the east when making a motion. 

 

Mr. Shacklett stated the applicant had heard the Commission’s wish to add a walkway to the 

east and suggested adding a condition to the motion for the walkway to continue through to the 

eastern property line.  He also suggested rather than attaching a separate exhibit, the 

Commission could move to have vehicular directional and pedestrian crossing signs provided in 

the general locations on Exhibit B2. 

 

Mr. Booth said the “way finding” signage would be appropriate, but cautioned the Commission 

that pedestrian crossing signs might interfere with a drivers view when exiting the drive-thru.  

He thought the enhancement pavement would provide a sufficient warning for the pedestrians 

and drivers. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

May 5, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-05-05 Minutes.doc  7 

Motion: Vice Chair Bright made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 15-07 as 

presented with the additional condition that the vehicular and pedestrians signs 

generally shown on Exhibit B3 be added, as well as continuing the walkway to the 

eastern property line; second by Commissioner Frey.   

 

Mr. Shacklett asked to clarify if the sign locations and walkway should be added to 

Exhibit B2 so there would only be one exhibit. 

 

Vice Chair Bright amended his motion to include Mr. Shacklett’s statement and 

Commissioner Gomez-Frey gave the second. 

 

Motion approved 7-0. 

 

5. Zoning File 15-10 – Villas of Nantucket:  Consider and take necessary action on a request to 

amend the existing PD Planned Development (Ordinance 4055) to allow additional accessory 

structures in the side yard setbacks for thirteen (13) residential lots.  The 1.76-acre property is 

located on the north side of Old Campbell Road at the intersection of Nantucket Drive. 

 

Mr. Bireima stated the applicant was requesting to amend the PD Planned Development 

standards to allow accessory structures within the side yard setbacks, which were not allowed in 

the original standards.  He added the applicant would like to amend the PD to allow accessory 

structures to enhance the outdoor living areas of the homes. 

 

Mr. Bireima advised that since there was a minimum 3-foot maintenance easement along one 

side of each lot, the accessory structures would need to be located 3 feet from the side lot line. 

 

In closing, Mr. Bireima suggested the following condition be included in the motion:  Accessory 

Buildings and Structures.  Lots containing dwelling units may not contain any accessory 

building(s) or structures other than stained cedar arbors, pergolas, decks, planters, and above 

ground spas or trellises.  Outdoor fireplaces and/or cooking grills are allowed; provided that 

they have proper screens and covers to contain sparks and embers from escaping.   Said 

structures may be either attached or detached and may have rear and side setbacks of zero (0) 

inches provided, however, that no such structure is located within any maintenance easement 

adjacent to the rear or side setbacks. 

 

No questions were asked of staff and Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 

 

Mr. Greg Cooney, 319 Overcreek Drive, Richardson, Texas, said he was available for any 

questions; none were asked. 

 

No other comments or questions were received and Chairman Hand closed the public hearing. 

 

Commissioner Springs stated he saw the request simply as “plugging a hole” in the original 

ordinance and was in favor of the item. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

May 5, 2015 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2015/2015-05-05 Minutes.doc  8 

Motion: Commissioner Frederick made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 15-10 

as presented; second by Commissioner Roland.  Motion approved 7-0. 

 

ADJOURN 

 

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Hand adjourned the regular 

business meeting at 8:09 p.m. 

 

 

 

_______________________ 

Gerald Bright, Vice Chair 

City Plan Commission 


